
City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

January 24, 2017, at 7 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.cityofpalmer.org  

 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Linda Combs 
Council Member Richard Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member David Fuller 
Council Member Brad Hanson 
Council Member Pete LaFrance 
 
City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Clerk Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 

 

A. Call to Order 
 
B. Roll Call 
 
C. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
D. Approval of Agenda 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Introduction of Ordinance No. 17-00X: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 

12.24.025.E regarding firearms in city parks, adding 12.24.025. M establishing hours 
during which parks are closed, 12.24.025.N establishing quiet hours in parks; and 
amending 12.24.030 to update park use permits process (IM No. 17-00X) Page 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a. November 1, 2016, Special Meeting .................................................. Page 
b. November 8, 2016, Special Meeting .................................................. Page 
c. November 8, 2016, Regular Meeting ................................................. Page 
d. November 22, 2016, Regular Meeting ............................................... Page 
e. January 10, 2017, Regular Meeting .................................................. Page 

 
E. Communication and Appearance Requests 

1. Kawasaki Disease Proclamation 
2. Engine 557 Restoration Company President Patrick Durand 

 
F. Reports 

1. City Manager’s Report ........................................................................... Page  
2. City Clerk’s Report ................................................................................ Page 
3. Mayor’s Report ..................................................................................... Page 
4. City Attorney’s Report 

 
G. Audience Participation 

 
H. Public Hearing  

1. Action Memorandum No. 17-00X: City Council Statement of Non-Objection to the 
Renewal of Liquor License #4064, for the Palmer Municipal Golf Course, Located at 1000 
LePak Avenue ...................................................................................... Page  

2. Action Memorandum No. 17-00X: City Council Statement of Non-Objection to the 
Renewal of Liquor License #2931, for the Mat-Su Miners, Located at the Alaska State 
Fairgrounds Hermon Brothers Field ........................................................ Page  

 
I. Action Memoranda 

Page 1

http://www.cityofpalmer.org/


1. Action Memorandum No. 17-00X: Authorize the City Manager to Negotiate and 
Execute a Phase 2 of the Contract with HDL Engineering Consultants for the Second 
Phase of the Engineering Services for the Rehabilitation and Repaving of Runway 16/34 
not to exceed $182,579.00 from the revised “Scope and Fee, Proposal for RFP #16-
01PAQ ................................................................................................. Page 

2. Action Memorandum No. 17-00X: Adoption of the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer 
Municipal Airport Master Plan 2016, developed by HDL Engineering Consultants 
 .......................................................................................................... Page 

 
J. New Business 

1. Golden Heart Lifetime Achievement Award ............................................. Page 
 
K. Record of Items Placed on the Table 

 
L. Audience Participation 

 
M. Council Member Comments 

 
N. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 

Tentative 2017 Palmer City Council Meetings 
 

Meeting Date Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

Jan 24 Regular 7 pm  

Feb 7 Joint 7 pm BED 

Feb 14 Regular 7 pm  

Feb 28 Regular 7 pm  

    
 

Page 2



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: IM No. 17-0XX Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Information Memorandum No. 17-0XX 

Ordinance No. 17-0XX 
 
Subject: Ordinance No. 16-0: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 12.24.025.E regarding 
firearms in city parks, adding 12.24.025. M establishing hours during which parks are closed, 
12.24.025.N establishing quiet hours in parks; and amending 12.24.030 to update park use permits 
process 
 
Agenda of: January 24, 2017 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory Board 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

√  Community Development   1/2/2017 

√  Finance 
 

 1/5/2017 

  Fire    

  Police     

  Public Works     

Attachment(s): 

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
√ Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 3



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: IM No. 17-0XX Page 2 of 2 

 Ordinance No. 17-0XX 
 Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory Board Minutes of the November 3, 2016 
 

Summary Statement:  
 
The primary change will bring park rules into compliance with Alaska Statutes on carrying firearms. Other 
changes will update the use permit process section by deleting the references to a specific department 
and establishing an 11 PM closing time and 0 PM to 6 AM quiet hours in City parks. 
 
Background:  The City has prohibited carrying a firearm in its parks since 1970.  In the intervening 
time, changes in the Alaska State Statutes, specifically AS 11.61.190 – AS 11.61.220 provide in essence, 
that if a person is legally allowed to possess a firearm in Alaska, they may carry it on their 
person.  There are exceptions for places where liquor is sold, around schools, in courtrooms, private 
property, etc.  A person carrying a firearm also has a duty to notify law enforcement of that fact if 
contacted.   The major amendment to Chapter 12.24 will change the carrying of firearms to prohibit 
discharge of a firearm in or into a city park. 
 
Other changes will establish quiet hours in the parks between 10 PM and 6 AM, and close city parks at 
11 PM. Having these times in the Municipal Code is a tool for Palmer Police officers to use if they need 
to deal with noise or other complaints in a city park.  
 
The final change will delete references to the former Department of Community Services and simply 
indicate that permits and forms will be provided by the City rather that a specific department. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:   Adopt Ordinance No. 17-0XX 
 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-0XX Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Ordinance No. 17-0XX 

 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council amending Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 
12.24.025.E regarding firearms in city parks, adding 12.24.025. M establishing hours 
during which parks are closed, 12.24.025.N establishing park quiet hours; and 
amending 12.24.030 to update park use permit process 
 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA ORDAINS: 

 
Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be 

incorporated into the Palmer Municipal Code. 
 
Section 2. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to 
other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

 
Section 3.  Chapter 12.24.025 is hereby amended to read as follows (new language is 

underlined and deleted language is stricken):   
 

12.24.025 General rules. 

The following general rules govern the public use of parks: 
A. A person may not cut, pick or damage trees, flowers or other vegetation in a park. 

 
B. A person may not camp in a park except in an area and at a time designated in a permit 

issued by the manager or the manager’s designee. 
 

C. A person may not light, build, use or maintain an open fire or portable camp stove in a 
park except in a receptacle or area designated for that use. A person may not leave an 
open fire or operating portable camp stove unattended. A person may not use a 
flammable liquid other than charcoal lighting fluid to start or accelerate a fire. 
 

D. A person may not sell or consume any alcoholic beverage in a park, playground or 
recreational facility except the clubroom of the Palmer golf course and the Palmer ice 
arena. 
 

Introduced by:  Parks, Recreation & 
Cultural Resources 
Advisory Board 

Date:  
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-0XX Page 2 of 3 

E.  A  No person may use or discharge  not  possess a firearm or similar device in or into  a 
park except: 
1. A peace officer acting within the scope and authority of the officer’s employment; or 
2. A person carrying a concealed handgun in accordance with AS 18.65.700 through 
18.65.790, and carrying a valid permit under such statutes; or 
3. 2.  A person participating in a public demonstration under a permit issued for that 
purpose by the manager or the manager’s designee. 
 

F. A person shall not shoot a bow and arrow in a park except in an area designated for 
archery activities by the manager or the manager’s designee. 
 

G. A person may not discharge fireworks in a park except in accordance with a permit 
issued under PMC 8.42.050. 
 

H. A person may not operate, or stop, stand or park, a motorized vehicle in a park except: 
1. In an area designed for the use, and in a manner permitted by the designation; 
2. As permitted under a use permit issued under PMC 12.24.030; or 
3. Construction, enforcement, maintenance or emergency vehicles operated by the 
state, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough, the City or their respective contractors. 
 

I. Where the operation of motor vehicles is permitted in a park, motor vehicles shall be 
operated in accordance with posted speed limits, in a prudent and safe manner, and at 
a speed not exceeding 10 miles per hour in parking areas. 
 

J. A person may not bring an animal into a park except: 
1. An animal that is in an area that has been posted for use by domesticated animals; 
2. A service animal, guide dog, or signal dog individually trained to provide assistance to 
an individual with a disability; or 
3. An animal that is under the direct control of a peace officer or emergency responder 
performing official duties, and trained to assist in performing those duties. 
 

K. A person having control or supervision of an animal that excretes feces in a park shall 
immediately collect and properly dispose of the feces. 

 
L. A person may not deposit litter or waste, or water, sewage or effluent from sinks, 

portable toilets or other plumbing fixtures, directly upon the surface of land or water in a 
park.  
 

M. Parks shall be closed at 11:00 p.m. each night until 6:00 a.m. the following morning and 
no person shall remain therein during said hours. 
 

N. Between the hours of 10 PM and 6 AM no person in a city park shall disturb other 
persons by making  loud noise, including the use of radio or other sound amplifying 
devise or loud voice in violation of Palmer Municipal Code 8.36.020.F or 8.36.025.A. 

Section 4.  Chapter 12.24.030 is hereby amended to read as follows (new language is 
underlined and deleted language is stricken):   

 
12.24.030 Use permits. 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 17-0XX Page 3 of 3 

A.  Park use permits for vendors, use of motor vehicles, animals and camping will be issued 
by the manager or designee and will address such issues as litter, sanitary facilities, 
damage, crowd control, traffic control, noise, hours of use, insurance and public notice. 
Permit fees will be established by council and revised from time to time. 

B.  User permits for baseball, softball and soccer fields will be issued by the City department 
of community services to the various organizations using the fields, and will address the 
user’s responsibilities, including insurance, trash removal and sanitary facilities. 

C.  All organizations or individuals purchasing ice time from the Palmer ice arena are 
required to have a use agreement issued by the City department of community services.  
  
Section 5. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 17-0XX  shall take effect upon adoption by the 

City of Palmer City Council.  
 

 
Passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Palmer, Alaska this ____ day of January, 
2017. 
    
 

_______________________________________ 
      Edna B. DeVries, Mayor  
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 

 

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 17-0XX Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 17-0XX 

 
Subject:  City Council Statement of Non-Objection to the Renewal of Liquor License #4064, for the 
Palmer Municipal Golf Course, Located at 1000 LePak Avenue 
 
Agenda of: January 24, 2017 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Clerk 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development    

  Finance    

  Fire    

  Police     

  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
√ Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 12



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 17-0XX Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 Review Form 
 Renewal Notice 

 
Summary Statement:  
 
The Palmer Municipal Golf Course has applied for renewal of their liquor license. State law requires local 
governing bodies to review requests pertaining to liquor licenses within their municipalities. The City may 
voice a non-objection or may file a protest to a request. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 17-00X directing the City Clerk to notify the State of Alaska the City 
Council makes a statement of non-objection to the renewal of Liquor License #4064 for the Palmer 
Municipal Golf Course. 

Page 13



1 
 

City of Palmer ● Liquor License Review Form   
 
 

BUSINESS NAME: Palmer Municipal Golf Course OWNER: City of Palmer 
 

LICENSE TYPE: Golf Course 
 

LOCATION: 1000 LePak Avenue 
 

 
Route to:  Department of Finance 
 

Department of Finance 
 

Sales Tax Current:  √ X Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Utilities Current:  √ X Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Special Assessments Current:  √ X Yes  No     
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 

 
1/3/17 

Finance Director  Date 
 
 
Route to: Department of Community Development 
 
 

Department of Community Development 
 

Code Compliant:  √ X Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
Other Comments: 
 
   
  12/22/2016 
Community Development Director  Date 

 
 

Page 14



2 
 

Route to: Police Department 
 

Department of Public Safety 
 

Code Compliant:  √ X Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 

 

12-22-16 
Chief of Police  Date 

 
 
Route to: City Manager’s Office 
 
 
 

City Manager’s Office 
Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 

 1/3/17 

City Manager  Date 
 
                                                
Route to:  City CLERK’S OFFICE 
 
FORWARD TO COUNCIL FOR AGENDA OF:  January 24, 2017 
 

Page 15



 

 

 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

December 20, 2016 
 
City of Palmer 
Attn:  City Clerk   
Via Email:   cityclerk@palmerak.org 
Cc: mwhisenhunt@matsugov.us 
 
Re: Notice of 2017/2018 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 
License Type: Golf Course License Number: 4064 
Licensee: City of Palmer 
Doing Business As: Palmer Municipal Golf Course 

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Cynthia Franklin, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  

Page 16

mailto:cityclerk@palmerak.org
mailto:mwhisenhunt@matsugov.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 17-0XX Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 17-0XX 

 
Subject:  City Council Statement of Non-Objection to the Renewal of Liquor License #2931, for the 
Mat-Su Miners, Located at the Alaska State Fairgrounds Hermon Brothers Field 
 
Agenda of: January 24, 2017 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Clerk 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development    

  Finance    

  Fire    

  Police     

  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
√ Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 17



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 17-0XX Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 Review Form 
 Renewal Notice 

 
Summary Statement:  
 
The Mat-Su Miners has applied for renewal of their liquor license. State law requires local governing bodies 
to review requests pertaining to liquor licenses within their municipalities. The City may voice a non-
objection or may file a protest to a request. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 17-00X directing the City Clerk to notify the State of Alaska the City 
Council makes a statement of non-objection to the renewal of Liquor License #2931 for the Mat-Su Miners. 

Page 18



1 
 

City of Palmer ● Liquor License Review Form   
 
 

BUSINESS NAME: Mat-Su Miners OWNER: Mat-Su Baseball, Inc. 
 

LICENSE TYPE: Recreational Site-Seasonal 
 

LOCATION: Hermon Brothers Field 
 

 
Route to:  Department of Finance 
 

Department of Finance 
 

Sales Tax Current:  √ X Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Utilities Current:  √ X Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Special Assessments Current:  √ X Yes  No     
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 
 12/26/16 

Finance Director  Date 
 
 
Route to: Department of Community Development 
 
 

Department of Community Development 
 

Code Compliant:  √ X Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
Other Comments: 
 
   
  12/22/2016 
Community Development Director  Date 

 
 
Route to: Police Department 

Page 19



2 
 

 
Department of Public Safety 

 
Code Compliant:  √ X Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 

 

12-22-16 
Chief of Police  Date 

 
 
Route to: City Manager’s Office 
 
 
 

City Manager’s Office 
Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 

  

City Manager  Date 
 
                                                
Route to:  CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
 
FORWARD TO COUNCIL FOR AGENDA OF:  January 24, 2017 
 

Page 20



 

 

 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7

th
 Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

December 20, 2016 
 
City of Palmer 
Attn:  City Clerk   
Via Email:   cityclerk@palmerak.org 
Cc: mwhisenhunt@matsugov.us 
 

Re: Notice of 2017/2018 Liquor License Renewal Application  
 

License Type: Recreational Site-Seasonal License Number: 2931 

Licensee: Mat-Su Baseball, Inc. 

Doing Business As: Mat-Su Miners 

  
We have received a completed renewal application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable.  
 
To protest the application referenced above, please submit your written protest within 60 days, and 
show proof of service upon the applicant and proof that the applicant has had a reasonable opportunity 
to defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body. 
 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Cynthia Franklin, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  

Page 21

mailto:cityclerk@palmerak.org
mailto:mwhisenhunt@matsugov.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 17-0XX Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 17-0XX 

 
Subject:  Authorize the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a Phase 2 of the Contract with HDL 
Engineering Consultants for the Second Phase of the Engineering Services for the Rehabilitation and 
Repaving of Runway 16/34 not to exceed $182,579.00 from the revised “Scope and Fee, Proposal for RFP 
#16-01PAQ. 
 
Agenda of: January 24, 2017 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank J. Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development    

X  Finance 
 

 1/5/17 

  Fire    

  Police     

  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 182,579.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
X Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 182,579.00 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 

X Budgeted Line item(s): 
30-30-10-6225 Airport Pvmt Repairs - $   42,579 
30-01-02-6225 AP Paving                  $ 140,000 

 Not budgeted   
 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 22



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 17-0XX Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 HDL Proposed Scope & Fee for RFP #16-01PAQ 
 15-DC-128 

 
Summary Statement:  
 
The City of Palmer entered into a Professional Services Agreement with HDL Engineering Consultants on 
November 4th, 2016 for Phase 1 of the Rehabilitation & Repaving of RW 16/34 for $237,913.00 (approved 
by Council in AM 16-065).  HDL has now completed the majority of the work associated with the initial 
portions of Phase 1 and has delivered on time the 35% EDR (Engineer’s Design Report) Draft for review 
before being sent to the FAA.   
 
To keep this project on schedule and to obtain the lowest spring time construction bidders, HDL will need 
to begin the final Engineering Design work ASAP.  Phase 2 of this contract was postponed until the 2017 
COP Budget was approved with the Additional CIP Project (30) Funding in place for $225,000.00.  The 
total Fee for Phase 1 for $237,913.00 & Phase 2 for $182,579.00 of the Consulting Engineer Work 
Needed on this project was $420,492.00.         
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 17-0XX, Encompassing Phase 2 for $182,579.00 of the Contract for 
the Original Scope of Services from HDL Engineering Consultants for the Completion of the Final Design 
Work and Bidding Assistance with RFP #16-01PAQ. 

Page 23



 

 

Anchorage       3335 Arctic Boulevard, Suite 100, Anchorage 99503  907.564.2120 
Mat-Su  202 West Elmwood Avenue, Palmer 99645  907.746.5230 

Kenai Peninsula   10735 Spur Highway, Suite 1B, Kenai 99611  907.283.2051 

 

CIVIL 

ENGINEERING 

GEOTECHNICAL 

ENGINEERING 

TRANSPORTATION 

ENGINEERING 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES 

PLANNING 

SURVEYING 

& MAPPING 

CONSTRUCTION 

ADMINISTRATION 

MATERIAL 

TESTING 

RIGHT-OF-WAY 

SERVICES 

October 25, 2016 October 28, 2016 

Frank Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
Chris Nall, Public Works Director 
City of Palmer 
231 W. Evergreen Avenue 
Palmer, Alaska 99645 

RE: Proposed Scope and Fee - Revised 
Proposal #16-01 PAQ – Engineering Services for Rehabilitation and Repaving of 
                                       Runway 16-34 

Gentlemen: 

HDL Engineering Consultants (HDL) is pleased to present this fee proposal for engineering 
services for the rehabilitation and repaving of Runway 16-34 and associated improvements 
at the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport.  

Anticipated improvements, prioritized by importance to the City of Palmer (City), include: 

1. Runway 16-34 Repaving and Shoulder Surfacing 
2. Object Free Area Improvements (earthwork, clearing and grubbing, tree topping, sign 

relocation) 
3. Runway Safety Area Expansion 
4. Taxiway B Spot Repairs 
5. Large Aircraft Apron Expansion, Phase 1 

SCOPE OF WORK 

PROJECT INITIATION 

Project Kickoff Meeting: Upon Notice to Proceed, HDL will coordinate a kick-off meeting to 
establish formal lines of communication, clarify scope and objectives, set project milestones, 
and confirm the City’s project expectations.  

Project Scoping:  The extent of the apron expansion needs to be decided prior to surveying, 
geotechnical evaluation, and design to maximize the available funding. We will prepare an 
initial project cost estimate for FAA and the City use in their decision-making and we will 
facilitate a meeting with FAA to discuss their level of participation. 

TASK 1—SURVEYING AND MAPPING 

HDL will supplement our existing aeronautical survey data with a detailed field survey to map 
all existing planimetric and topographic features for design.  

Survey Control: HDL will check the existing primary airport control network and will add new 
vertical control monuments along Runway 16-34 to facilitate construction. A new local 
coordinate system will be established for the design of this project. 

Page 24



RE:  Proposed Scope and Fee, RFP #16-001PAQ – Engineering for Runway 16-34-Revised 
October 25, 2016 October 28, 2016 
Page 2 of 6 

 

Topographic Design Survey: Prior to the field work, existing aeronautical survey data will 
be reviewed, and detailed instructions and survey limits provided to our field crews. At a 
minimum, we expect to reuse the topography in the runway safety areas, taxilane extension, 
and apron expansion areas, as well as the Runway 16-34 lighting can positions and 
elevations. Our field crews will gather topographic pavement elevations for Runway 16-34 
and the adjoining taxiways. Data will be gathered by taking cross sections every 50 feet within 
the survey limits and by mapping all buried utilities, large improvements, and drainage 
features outside the limits that may affect design. We will contact utility companies to verify 
they have no facilities in the project area. We will coordinate with Public Works to verify the 
location of existing City utilities shown on record drawings and will field locate new or not-
shown facilities. The data from the field survey will be reduced, new information added to the 
existing aeronautical data, and a Triangulated Irregular Network surface model and base 
drawing will be created for our engineers.  

Survey Quality Control/Quality Assurance. All survey work products will receive internal 
independent quality control reviews and quality assurance checks. Upon completion of the 
draft work product, a second licensed surveyor will review the survey calculations and data 
prior to a final quality assurance review. A survey field report and electronic check of all the 
data will be prepared.  

Final Survey Deliverables. Final deliverables to our in-house designers will include a base 
drawing, survey check report, copies of the field notes, indexed photographs, and a survey 
report. If requested, copies will also be provided to the City.  We will also prepare a survey 
control diagram to be included in the final plan set. 

TASK 2—GEOTECHNICAL EVALUATION 

A geotechnical evaluation will be conducted in accordance with AC 150/5320-6E, as modified 
for the specific needs of this project to confirm the subgrade conditions meet FAA 
requirements, establish whether differences in the pavement composition account for the 
observed difference in pavement life, and acquire engineering properties of soils for pavement 
design.  

Geotechnical Exploration. The exploration will include pavement cores, borings, and 
laboratory testing. An experienced HDL geologist will evaluate subsurface conditions, collect 
samples, observe drill rig operations, and conduct field tests. 

Twenty asphalt cores, ten in the northern and ten in the southern portion of the runway, will 
be collected and tested to evaluate the differences in pavement thickness, asphalt content, 
and composition. 

We anticipate the soils under the pavement will be fairly consistent and few borings will be 
needed to delineate any changes in material properties. Geotechnical borings will be drilled 
in the runway and will be shifted between left-, along-, and right-of-centerline. We anticipate 
four borings in the north 1,000 feet and six borings in the south 5,000 feet. Four borings will 
also be drilled for the proposed apron expansion. Three additional borings will be drilled in the 
abandoned service road to evaluate the composition and thickness of gravel the City may 
wish to recycle. All 17 borings will be advanced to a depth of 10 feet or through the fill depth, 

Page 25



RE:  Proposed Scope and Fee, RFP #16-001PAQ – Engineering for Runway 16-34-Revised 
October 25, 2016 October 28, 2016 
Page 3 of 6 

 

whichever is greater, using hollow stem augers. In addition, Dynamic Cone Penetrometer 
testing will be performed according to AC 150/5370-11D. We do not anticipate borings for the 
Taxiway B repairs, runway safety area improvements, or object free area improvements. 

Soil samples will be tested for engineering properties including gradation, natural fracture, 
California Bearing Ratio, and soil frost groups.  

Geotechnical Exploration Report. We will prepare the report presenting the results of the 
field investigation and laboratory testing. The report will also provide pavement reconstruction, 
and apron design recommendations.  

TASK 3—ENGINEER’S DESIGN REPORT 

Per FAA Order 5100-38D, the Engineer’s Design Report (EDR) will document the existing 

conditions, identify the design criteria, summarize the geotechnical evaluation and pavement 
recommendations, evaluate project alternatives and costs, and provide a recommended 
alternative with approximately 35 percent complete drawings and cost estimate. We anticipate 
the alternatives will consider: build, no-build; using Taxiway A as a temporary runway; night 
construction; off-peak construction; reuses for recycled asphalt pavement; utilizing the 
abandoned service road gravel; tree trimming versus clearing; and how construction phasing 
will impact airport users. 

We will perform the airfield pavement design analysis using FAARFIELD and AC 150/5320-
6F and will provide the City with a Pavement Classification Number (PCN).  

For the EDR cost estimate, we will compute estimated quantities and use historical bid prices 
for similar work at PAQ, Wasilla Municipal Airport, and Merrill Field Airport, as well as other 
recent public works projects in Palmer. The unit prices will be adjusted for current bidding 
conditions and engineering judgement.  

The draft EDR, preliminary plans, and cost estimate will be submitted to the City for review. 
All written EDR review comments will be documented and addressed, and a record of 
adjudication will be provided with the final, sealed EDR.  

TASK 4—CONSTRUCTION SAFETY & PHASING PLAN 

HDL will prepare a Construction Safety & Phasing Plan (CSPP) per AC 150/5370-2. The 
CSPP will include drawings depicting limits of work, construction sequencing, haul routes, 
runway and taxiway safety areas, utilities, disposal areas, stockpile areas, staging areas, and 
temporary operational areas. Specifications will address contractor communication 
requirements; construction safety meetings, schedule limitations, and requirements; and lines 
of authority and organization between the City, HDL, the contractor, and FAA.  

The draft CSPP will be submitted to the City with the draft EDR. We will incorporate and 
document changes based on the City’s comments and then submit the draft CSPP to FAA for 

their approval. HDL will incorporate any FAA comments into the final CSPP. 

Page 26



RE:  Proposed Scope and Fee, RFP #16-001PAQ – Engineering for Runway 16-34-Revised 
October 25, 2016 October 28, 2016 
Page 4 of 6 

 

TASK 5—FINAL DESIGN 

After completion of the EDR, HDL will quickly advance the plans, specifications, and 
construction cost estimate (PS&E) towards bid-ready documents. Three steps are anticipated: 
Step 1 - 65 percent; Step 2 - 95 percent; and Step 3 - bid-ready. The design and deliverables 
will comply with FAA Advisory Circulars for airport improvement projects. Plans will be 
prepared utilizing AutoCAD Civil 3D 2016 for drafting, and deliverables will be in a single 
hardcopy and as Adobe PDF electronic files ready for printing.  

The 65 percent design documents will include the draft PS&E for the preferred alternative, as 
well as any temporary construction necessary for the CSPP. The documents will be 
sufficiently complete to fully identify the construction elements and limits, and will be submitted 
for the City’s review and comment. The cost estimate for each of the six major improvement 
elements will be computed and presented separately to allow the City to identify the 
combination of improvements to forward as a base bid, as well as any additive alternates to 
include in the final bid package. 

Upon receipt of any comments, the design will be advanced to the 95 percent level by adding 
the details of construction and contractor instructions to clearly describe what is expected and 
how payment is made for the work elements. The 95 percent package will be submitted for 
the City’s review and comment and, after a brief City review, for FAA review and comment. 

Simultaneously, the plans will be available to stakeholders as noted in Task 6. 

Upon receipt of comments from the City and FAA, any final revisions will be made and bid-
ready documents produced and delivered to the City for on-line distribution. 

Plans: The plan set will be developed following the drafting standards that we have developed 
for the City and have used on many FAA-funded projects. It will include sheets for overall 
project layout, survey control, typical sections, plans and profiles, marking plans, details, 
obstruction removal, sign relocation, cross sections, and miscellaneous other information as 
needed.  

Specifications: The specifications will utilize the City’s standard bidding and general contract 

provisions and State of Alaska Standard Specifications for Airports, as approved by FAA. 
Deviations from standard specifications or FAA design criteria will be summarized in a 
“Modifications to Standards” memorandum, submitted with the specifications.  

Estimate: The construction cost estimate will be refined and revised at each submittal phase 
to account for updates in bid items, quantities, and bid prices. Any lump sum assumptions will 
be documented.  

Quality Control/Quality Assurance: David Lundin will be responsible for quality control of 
all documents and will review all submittals for completeness and accuracy. Scott Hattenburg 
will provide a quality assurance review on the 95 percent documents; his comments will be 
addressed prior to the bid-ready submittal. 

Page 27



RE:  Proposed Scope and Fee, RFP #16-001PAQ – Engineering for Runway 16-34-Revised 
October 25, 2016 October 28, 2016 
Page 5 of 6 

 

TASK 6—STAKEHOLDER COORDINATION 

Stakeholders will be invited to an initial meeting where we will present the project and hear 
from users their thoughts on how impacts can be minimized. Stakeholder concerns will be 
documented and discussed with the City. Solutions, such as strategic construction scheduling 
and phasing, using Taxiway A as a temporary runway, and night construction will be 
considered in the preliminary design and presented to the stakeholders. Stakeholder 
communication during the design process will be maintained through a monthly email 
newsletter that will provide updates on the design and schedule. A second stakeholder 
meeting will be coordinated with the City’s 95 percent design review. This meeting will provide 

an opportunity to present the design and learn about any stakeholder operational changes.  

TASK 7—BIDDING AND GRANT ASSISTANCE 

On behalf of the City, we will prepare the Invitation to Bid, respond to bidders’ questions, 

conduct a pre-bid conference, issue written addendums, tabulate bids, check proposals for 
completeness, review bonding and insurance submittals, and provide a written 
recommendation for award based on the lowest responsive bid.  

HDL will draft an FAA grant application and coordinate with FAA so the grant can be awarded 
as soon as possible after bid opening. We will submit a draft grant application for FAA review 
based on the engineer’s construction cost estimate, and will update the application with the 
actual bid amount after bid opening. 

AIRPORT SAFETY 

Airport safety during our survey, geotechnical, and engineering field work is of utmost 
importance. HDL will review with the City how we will safely conduct field operations. Notices-
to-Airmen (NOTAMs) will be properly filed. Survey instruments will be set up outside air 
operation areas, and the time spent near runways and taxiways will be minimized. 
Geotechnical drilling within air operation areas will be conducted at night using a properly 
closed and marked runway. Our trained crews will continuously monitor the common traffic 
advisory frequency. They will keep a watchful eye for surprise air traffic and give it first priority. 
Vehicles and drill rigs will be marked with beacons. Frank Kelly will be briefed in advance of 
all field activity.   

ASSUMPTIONS 

The following assumptions were used in developing this fee proposal: 

1. Environmental documentation will be completed by separate contract. 
2. Field surveying and geotechnical evaluations to be performed in fall 2016 in leaf-off, 

no snow conditions.  Snow depth greater than 6 inches or temperatures below 20 
degrees F may delay production and require additional budget. 

3. GPS survey methods will be used where possible and supplemented by conventional 
survey techniques where needed.   

4. The project will be bid in one package, one time, using additive alternates where 
needed to maximize the use of available funding.  Alternates will be determined from 
the 65 percent submittal. 

Page 28



RE:  Proposed Scope and Fee, RFP #16-001PAQ – Engineering for Runway 16-34-Revised 
October 25, 2016 October 28, 2016 
Page 6 of 6 

 

5. Taxilane L extension is not included. 
6. A CSPP for surveying and geotechnical evaluation fieldwork is not required. 

SCHEDULE 

Upon NTP we will commence the project initiation and fieldwork tasks as soon as possible. 
Due to the delay in award, the originally proposed project schedule will be updated and 
submitted upon NTP. 

FEE 

We propose to provide the aforementioned services on a time and expenses basis for a 
budget not to exceed $420,492 as detailed on the attached worksheet. We anticipate this 
contract will be broken into two phases, as follows: 

 TASKS PHASE TOTAL APPROVAL DATE 
Phase 1 1, 2, 3, 4, 6 $237,913 November 2016 
Phase 2 5, 7 $182,579 January 2017 

Thank you for your confidence and we look forward to continuing our work with you.  Please 
contact me if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

HDL Engineering Consultants, LLC 

David Lundin, PE 
Principal / Civil & Environmental Engineer 

attach: Proposed Fee Worksheet (dated 10-28-16) 

 
 

H:\proposals\86-125 Palmer Runway 16-34 Rehab (COP)\Fee Proposal\PAQ 16-34 fee letter-rev 102816.docx 

Page 29



  

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: DATE: 10/28/2016

Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TOTAL NEGOTIATED FIXED FEE: N/A

GROUP TASK
LABOR          

(or FP)

INDIRECT 

COST
EXPENSES TOTAL COST

FEE 

DISTRIBUTION

FIRM'S TOTAL 

PRICE

*SUB-

CONTRACTS

PRICE PLUS 

SUBS

    

0 0 $9,140 $0 $0 $9,140 $9,140 $0 $9,140

0 1 $59,960 $0 $0 $59,960 $59,960 $0 $59,960

0 2 $20,505 $0 $18,560 $39,065 $39,065 $13,530 $52,595

0 3 $70,245 $0 $0 $70,245 $70,245 $2,327 $72,572

0 4 $14,620 $0 $0 $14,620 $14,620 $0 $14,620

0 5 $165,365 $0 $0 $165,365 $165,365 $6,424 $171,789

0 6 $14,440 $0 $220 $14,660 $14,660 $14,366 $29,026

0 7 $10,790 $0 $0 $10,790 $10,790 $0 $10,790

ESTIMATED 

TOTALS

LABOR           

(or FP)

INDIRECT 

COST
EXPENSES TOTAL COST FEE

FIRM'S TOTAL 

PRICE

*SUB-

CONTRACTS

PRICE PLUS 

SUBS

FOR FIRM: $365,065 $0 $18,780 $383,845 $0 $383,845 $36,647 $420,492

*Subcontractors for negotiated professional or technical services, products, etc.  (Commodity items available to the general public at 
market prices, equipment use, and unit priced items are generally included in estimate as expenses.)

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 estimate.sum(10/96)  DOT/PF, Tasks Estimate Summary 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 30



  COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 0   TASK DESCRIPTION: Project Initiation DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       David Lundin

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Project 

Manager

Aviation 

Engineer

Sr. Aviation 

Engineer

Eng. 

Assistant

Clerical

4 2

4 4 4 8 2

4 8 12
4 8 4

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 16 20 8 20 4 0 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $170.00 $140.00 $175.00 $95.00 $80.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $2,720.00 $2,800.00 $1,400.00 $1,900.00 $320.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $9,140

Markup at 10% $0.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $0 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $0

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $9,140

FIRM: Subtotal 10% Markup

AMOUNT: $0 $0 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $0

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

Management & Coordination

Project Kickoff Meeting

Project Scoping
Cost Estimates
FAA Coordination

COMMENTS:  Assumes an initial construction cost estimate for the 
Large Aircraft Apron Expansion, including comparitive options of a) 
imported gravel and b) reuse of gravel from the abandoned service 
road. Apron Expansion will be further broken down into 1) a minimal 
width to provide lease lot access and 2) full build-out.

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 Task0 (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 31



COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 1   TASK DESCRIPTION: Surveying & Mapping DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       Brad Rinckey

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Project 

Manager

Lead 

Surveyor

Project 

Surveyor

Survey 

Tech.

1-Man Crew 2-Man Crew Clerical

4 4 2

2 4
1 8 8 16
1 8 12 16
1 16 40 8 56
1 4 4 8

Survey Base Map Drawing 2 4 40 100
2 4 16 40

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 8 18 96 204 16 88 2 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $170.00 $150.00 $140.00 $105.00 $150.00 $210.00 $80.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $1,360 $2,700 $13,440 $21,420 $2,400 $18,480 $160 $0 $0 $0

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

0 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $59,960

Markup at 10% $0.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $0 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $0

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $59,960

FIRM: Subtotal 10% Markup

AMOUNT: $0 $0 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $0

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

Management & Coordination

Research

Utility Survey

Horizontal Control
Vertical Control
Topographic Survey

Survey Control Drawing

COMMENTS:  .

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 Task1 (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 32



  COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 2   TASK DESCRIPTION: Geotechnical Evaluation DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       Doug Simon

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Project 

Manager

Geotech. 

Engineer 

Geotech. 

Eng. Asst.

Drafter Clerical

Management & Coordination 2 4 2

Literature Review 4 4
Work Plan 8

Geotechnical Exploration
Right-of Entry/Utility Locate 4
Mobilization/Demobilization 3
Fieldwork 18 48
Laboratory Testing 4

Report & Recommendations
Draft Report & Recommendations 2 16 28 8 4
Final Report & Recommendations 2 4 8 2 2

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 6 61 92 10 8 0 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $170.00 $145.00 $100.00 $80.00 $80.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $1,020.00 $8,845.00 $9,200.00 $800.00 $640.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

Miscellaneous Field Equipment 1 $500.00 $500.00
Runway closure lighted X's 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

Markup at 10% $250.00

Laboratory Testing 1 $15,210.00 $15,210.00
Vehicle 5 $80.00 $400.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $20,505

Coring Equipment 2 $100.00 $200.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $18,560 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $18,560

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $39,065

FIRM: Driller Subtotal 10% Markup

AMOUNT: $12,300 $12,300 $1,230 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $13,530

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

COMMENTS: Includes total 17 borings to 10 feet deep or through fill; 
4 in north 1,000 feet of RW 16-34, 6 in south 5,000 feet of RW 16-34, 4 
in apron expansion area, and 3 in the abandoned service road.  Also 
includes 20 pavement corings; 10 in north 1,000 feet of RW 16-34 and 
10 in south 5,000 feet of RW 16-34. Recommendations will be provided
in report.

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 Task2 (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 33



  COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 2a   TASK DESCRIPTION: Laboratory Testing DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       Doug Simon

COST PER TESTING ITEM

LAB TEST # OF TESTS COST PER 

TEST

SUBTOTAL

Asphalt Content and Gradation 20 $275.00 $5,500.00
Bulk Specific Gravity 20 $65.00 $1,300.00
Fracture Percentage 30 $50.00 $1,500.00
CBR and Degradation 4 $600.00 $2,400.00
Sieve and Hydrometer 21 $190.00 $3,990.00
Moisture Content 52 $10.00 $520.00

TOTAL NUMBER OF TESTS 147

LABORATORY COSTS ($) $15,210.00
EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF TESTING (or Fixed Price): $15,210

Markup at 10% $0.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $0 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $0

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $15,210

FIRM: Subtotal 10% Markup

AMOUNT: $0 $0 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $0

COMMENTS: 

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 Task2a - lab (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 34



  COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 3   TASK DESCRIPTION: Engineer's Design Report DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       David Lundin

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Project 

Manager

Aviation 

Engineer

Sr. Aviation 

Engineer

Eng. 

Assistant

Drafter Clerical

Management & Coordination 16 2

8 80 40 8
27 76 19 110 68 0
8 24 24

8 16 4 24 8

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 67 196 23 198 68 18 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $170.00 $140.00 $175.00 $95.00 $105.00 $80.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $11,390.00 $27,440.00 $4,025.00 $18,810.00 $7,140.00 $1,440.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $70,245

Markup at 10% $0.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $0 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $0

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $70,245

FIRM: EDC Subtotal 10% Markup

AMOUNT: $2,115 $2,115 $212 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $2,327

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

Final Report

Draft Report
Plans (35%)
Quantities & Cost Estimate (35%)

COMMENTS:  Civil plan set for 35% is assumed to include 26 sheets 
and does not include pavement marking plans.  Electrical plans add 2 
sheets.

Plan & Profile 11x17 sheets at 1"=60'

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 Task3 (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 35



COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: EDC, Inc. PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 3   TASK DESCRIPTION: Engineer's Design Report DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       John Pepe

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Lead Elec. 

Engineer

Eng. 

Assistant

Drafter Clerical

Management & Coordination 2

2 1
2 1
1 1

2 1

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 9 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $175.00 $135.00 $120.00 $85.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $1,575.00 $540.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $2,115

$0.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $0 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $0

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $2,115

FIRM:

AMOUNT: TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $0

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

Final Report

Draft Report
Plans (35%)
Quantities & Cost Estimate (35%)

COMMENTS:  

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 EDC 3 (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 36



  COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 4   TASK DESCRIPTION: Construction Safety & Phasing Plan DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       David Lundin

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Project 

Manager

Aviation 

Engineer

Sr. Aviation 

Engineer

Eng. 

Assistant

Drafter Clerical

Management & Coordination 4 2

Draft CSPP 2 8 24 40 8
Final CSPP 2 4 8 8 4

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 8 12 32 48 12 2 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $170.00 $140.00 $175.00 $95.00 $105.00 $80.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $1,360.00 $1,680.00 $5,600.00 $4,560.00 $1,260.00 $160.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $14,620

Markup at 10% $0.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $0 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $0

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $14,620

FIRM: Subtotal 10% Markup

AMOUNT: $0 $0 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $0

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

COMMENTS:  

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 Task4 (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 37



COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 5   TASK DESCRIPTION: Final Design DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       David Lundin

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Project 

Manager

Aviation 

Engineer

Sr. Aviation 

Engineer

Eng. 

Assistant

Drafter Clerical

Management & Coordination 40 8

Plans (65%) 38 130 10 147 105 0
Specifications (65%) 8 40 16 4
Quantities & Cost Estimate (65%) 4 16 24

Plans (95%) 38 144 9 209 105 0
Specifications (95%) 4 32 4 16 4
Quantities & Cost Estimate (95%) 4 8 4 24

Plans (Bid-ready) 8 40 4 40 40 0
Specifications (Bid-ready) 2 8 4 8
Quantities & Cost Est. (Bid-ready) 2 4 2 12

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 148 422 37 496 250 16 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $170.00 $140.00 $175.00 $95.00 $105.00 $80.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $25,160.00 $59,080.00 $6,475.00 $47,120.00 $26,250.00 $1,280.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $165,365

Markup at 10% $0.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $0 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $0

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $165,365

FIRM: EDC Subtotal 10% Markup

AMOUNT: $5,840 $5,840 $584 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $6,424

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

COMMENTS:  Final plan set is assumed to include 36 sheets plus 
electrical plans and earthwork cross-sections.

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 Task5 (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 38



COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: EDC, Inc. PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 5   TASK DESCRIPTION: Final Design - Electrical for Illuminated Sign Relocation DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       John Pepe

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Lead Elec. 

Engineer

Eng. 

Assistant

Drafter Clerical

Management & Coordination 2

Plans (65%) 3 4 3
Specifications (65%) 2 3
Quantities & Cost Estimate (65%) 1 1

Plans (95%) 2 3 3
Specifications (95%) 1 2
Quantities & Cost Estimate (95%) 1 1

Plans (Bid-ready) 1 2 2
Specifications (Bid-ready) 1 1
Quantities & Cost Est. (Bid-ready) 1

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 14 18 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $175.00 $135.00 $120.00 $85.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $2,450.00 $2,430.00 $960.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $5,840

$0.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $0 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $0

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $5,840

FIRM:

AMOUNT: TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $0

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

COMMENTS:  

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 EDC 5 (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 39



COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 6   TASK DESCRIPTION: Stakeholder Coordination DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       David Lundin

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Project 

Manager

Aviation 

Engineer

Sr. Aviation 

Engineer

Eng. 

Assistant

Drafter Clerical

Management & Coordination 8 2

Stakeholder Meeting - Initial 4 8 4 8 8
Stakeholder Meeting - 95% 4 8 8 16

Email Newsletter 6 18

Comment Documentation 2 8

 

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 22 36 4 24 24 2 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $170.00 $140.00 $175.00 $95.00 $105.00 $80.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $3,740.00 $5,040.00 $700.00 $2,280.00 $2,520.00 $160.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

Misc Meeting Exp. 2 $100.00 $200.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $14,440

Markup at 10% $20.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $220 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $220

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $14,660

FIRM: Brooks Subtotal 10% Markup

AMOUNT: $13,060 $13,060 $1,306 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $14,366

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

COMMENTS:  Assumes six editions of the monthly email newsletter.

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 Task6 (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 40



  COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: Brooks & Associates PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 6   TASK DESCRIPTION: Stakeholder Coordination DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       Anne Brooks

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION

PI Lead
PI 

Associate

Technical 

Editor

Web/ 

Graphics

Management & Coordination 10

Stakeholder Meeting - Initial 8 16 2 2
Stakeholder Meeting - 95% 8 16 2 2

Email Newsletter 8 16 2 6

Comment Documentation 8 16 4

 

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 42 64 10 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $130.00 $80.00 $80.00 $80.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $5,460.00 $5,120.00 $800.00 $800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

$0.00
2 $250.00 $500.00

Meeting Materials 2 $150.00 $300.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $12,180

Markup at 10% $80.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $880 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $880

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $13,060

FIRM:

AMOUNT: TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $0

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

Display Ads (3 x 2), Frontiersman

Meeting venue rental (assume Forestry classroom)

COMMENTS/ASSUMPTIONS:  
1. No city-wide mailings
2. Continue email list from Master Plan effort (n-141 as of 
10/20/16)
3. Meetings booked by City at Forestry classroom -- no charge
4. 2 Display ads 1 per meeting in Frontiersman
5. E-newsletters sent to stakeholders monthly, 6 assumed

Page 41



  COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for Rehab/Repaving RW 16-34

TASK NO: 7   TASK DESCRIPTION: Bidding & Grant Assistance DATE: 10/28/2016

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY:       David Lundin

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION

TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Project 

Manager

Aviation 

Engineer

Sr. Aviation 

Engineer

Eng. 

Assistant

Drafter Clerical

Management & Coordination 8 2

Bidding Assistance 8 16 0 18 0 2

Grant Assistance 6 16 2 2 0 0

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 22 32 2 20 0 4 0 0 0 0 0
* LABOR RATES ($/HR) $170.00 $140.00 $175.00 $95.00 $105.00 $80.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $3,740.00 $4,480.00 $350.00 $1,900.00 $0.00 $320.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

EXPENSES

SUB-

TASK NO.
ITEM(S) QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price): $10,790

Markup at 10% $0.00 IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00% $0

TOTAL EXPENSES: $0 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES $0

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee) $10,790

FIRM: Subtotal 10% Markup

AMOUNT: $0 $0 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES: $0

*  Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

COMMENTS: City will advertise and distribute bid documents. 

PAQ 16-34 design fee final Rev 102816 Task7 (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 10/31/2016   5:17 PMPage 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: IM No. 17-0XX Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Information Memorandum No. 17-0XX 

Resolution No. 17-0XX 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 17-0XX: Adoption of the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport Master 
Plan 2016, developed by HDL Engineering Consultants. 
 
Agenda of: January 17, 2017 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank J. Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development    

  Finance    

  Fire    

  Police     

  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
X Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 56



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: IM No. 17-0XX Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 
 Resolution No. 17-0XX 
 AAC Resolution 16-002  
 Palmer Master Plan Report Vol. 1 
 Palmer Master Plan Report Vol. 2 

 
Summary Statement:  
 
In early 2014, HDL Engineering Consultants was awarded the contract to assist the City of Palmer in 
updating the Airport Master Plan for the Palmer Municipal Airport.   During the entire process, the Airport 
Advisory Commission in conjunction with Airport Management, Public Works and City Administration have 
worked closely with HDL to produce the New Airport Master Plan dated August 2016.   
 
The Airport Advisory Commission (AAC) has thoroughly reviewed this document, recommended certain 
enhancements, changes or revisions and is now satisfied with the end results.  The AAC recommends that 
the Palmer City Council accepts this New Airport Master Plan as outlined in AAC Resolution 16-002.        
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 17-0XX Accepting the new Airport Master Plan dated August 2016. 
 
 

Page 57



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 17-0XX Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Resolution No. 17-0XX 

 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Adopting the Warren “Bud Woods” Palmer 
Municipal Airport Master Plan 2016, developed by HDL Engineering Consultants. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer operates the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Palmer City Council voted to update the Airport Master Plan in 2014 and 

to allow the Palmer City Manager to enter into and execute a professional services agreement 
with HDL Engineering Consultants, to develop the City of Palmer Airport Master Plan to keep the 
City of Palmer airport in compliance with Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, HDL Engineering Consultants has completed the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer 

Municipal Airport Master Plan 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Airport Advisory Commission (AAC) advises the City in matters pertaining 

to the airport; and 
 
WHEREAS, the AAC recommends the City Council accept the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer 

Municipal Airport Master Plan 2016; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Palmer City Council hereby adopts the Warren 
“Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport Master Plan 2016 as developed by HDL Engineering 
Consultants. 
 
Approved by the City Council of the City of Palmer, Alaska, this ____ day of ___________, 2017. 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 

Introduced by:  
Date:  

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 58



Page 59



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
To date, the following persons have been made nominated to receive the Golden 
Heart Lifetime Achievement Award (listed in alphabetical order): 
 

• Stan Guthrie 
• Eve Hermon 
• Gene Horner 
• Pat Lawton 

 
Previous Recipients have been: 
 

• 2014 
o Leisa Carrick 
o Ruth Estelle 
o Pat Lawton 
o Denise Statz 

• 2015 
o No award was given this year 

• 2016 
o Wayne Bouwens 
o Janette Bower 
o Jo Ehmann 
o Ken Erbey 

 
Code States: 
 
2.04.150 Golden Heart Lifetime Achievement Award. 
The purpose of the Golden Heart Lifetime Achievement Award is to honor member 
of the Palmer community that has exhibited kindness, passion, and the unwavering 
pioneering spirit of Palmer.  
A. The council shall submit nominations on or before the second meeting of January 
and select a winner at the second meeting of January. 
B. The mayor shall present the award to the selected award winner, the week of 
February 14th. (Ord. 13-013 § 3, 2013) 

TO: Mayor DeVries and City Council Members 

FROM: Norma I. Alley, MMC 

DATE: January 24, 2017 

SUBJECT: Golden Heart Lifetime Achievement Award Nominees 

 
Norma I. Alley, MMC 

City Clerk 
 

  
  

Direct: (907) 761-1301 
Fax: (907) 745-0930 

  
231 W. Evergreen Ave. 

Palmer, Alaska  99645-6952 
www.cityofpalmer.org  

  
  

Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



1/10/2017 | 2016 Governor’s Veterans Advocacy Award goes to Vietnam veteran

http://www.akbizmag.com/Government/2016GovernorsVeteransAdvocacyAwardgoestoVietnamveteran/index.php?&mode=print 1/1

Send to printer Close window

2016 Governor’s Veterans Advocacy Award
goes to Vietnam veteran
JOINT BASE ELMENDORFRICHARDSON, Alaska — A Vietnam veteran and Palmer resident has been named the 2016
Governor’s Veterans Advocacy Award winner.

 

Gene Horner received the award during the Veterans Day ceremony Nov. 11 at the Alaska National Guard armory on Joint Base
ElmendorfRichardson.  Alaska’s Governor Bill Walker and Verdie Bowen, director of the State Office of Veterans Affairs, presented
the award to Horner.

 

“Gene Horner is a humble advocate for all veterans, but is best known for his long term devotion playing Taps,” Bowen said.  “You
will find Gene at veteran funerals across the State, ensuring they are bestowed the honor they deserve for their service to this great
nation.”

 

Gene began playing trumpet around age 10.  In 1967 he enlisted in the Army.  It is then that his playing really picked up.  At the
height of the Vietnam War, he sounded Taps for nearly 200 funerals in a three month period.  After a military stop in Anchorage in
1968, he was struck by Alaska’s beauty and knew he would return.  He later did just that, moving to Alaska in 1977.

 

Gene was unanimously selected for this award by members of the Alaska Veterans Advisory Council.

 

“Since 1999 Gene has offered his services as an unpaid volunteer.  His commitment to veterans and their families, Veteran Service
Organizations, and many other groups makes him an exemplary recipient for this award,” Bowen said.

 

Page 65


	01 2017-0124 Agenda
	05 Ord. 17-00X Firearms in Parks
	12.24.025 General rules.
	12.24.030 Use permits.

	06 Ord. 17-00X PRCRAB 11-03-16 Minutes
	07 AM 17-00X Liquor License - Golf Course
	08 Liquor License - Golf Course 4064 Review Form
	09 Liquor License - Golf Course 4064 Notice
	10 AM 17-00X Liquor License - Mat-Su Miners
	11 Liquor License - Mat-Su Miners 2931 Review Form
	12 Liquor License - Mat-Su Miners 2931 Notice
	13 AM 17-0XX for Phase 2 HDL Contract
	14 Res. 17-00X Support Docs - HDL Proposal
	15 Res. 17-00X Support Doc - Grant Agt.
	16 Res. 17-00X Airport Master Plan 2016
	17 Res. 17-00X AAC Resolution 16-002
	20 Memo re Golden Heart
	21 Golden Heart Write Ups



